
Public Safety Committee  
May 7, 2012 
Page 1 of 3 

TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND 
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
Date:  May 7, 2012                                              Time: 10:03 a.m. 
 
 
Members Present:    Bill Harkins, Chairman; Kim Likins; Lee Edwards 
 
Members Absent:     None 
 

Town Staff Present: Brian Hulbert, Staff Attorney; Rene Phillips, Website/Court Systems 
Administrator; and Lynn Buchman, Administrative Assistant 

Others Present: Lt. Glenn Zanellotti, Beaufort County Sheriff’s Office; Lt. Daryl 
Johnson, Palmetto Dunes Security; and Eleanor O’Key, LowCountry 
Inside Track  

Media Present: None 
 

 
1. Call to Order  
2. Freedom of Information Act Compliance 
Public notification of this meeting has been published, posted, and mailed in compliance with the 
Freedom of Information Act and the Town of Hilton Head Island requirements. 

3. Approval of Minutes 
a.   Regular Public Safety Committee Meeting of March 5, 2012 

Motion to approve the minutes of the March 5, 2012 Regular Public Safety Committee meeting 
was made by Kim Likins and seconded by Lee Edwards.  The Motion was approved by a vote of 
3-0.   

4. Unfinished Business 
None 

5. New Business 
a. 1st Quarter 2012 Crime Statistics – Lt. Glenn Zanelotti 

Lt. Glenn Zanelotti reviewed with the Committee the crime statistics for the first quarter of 2012, 
noting that there has been a steady decline in the reportable crimes against persons and property. 

Chairman Harkins remarked that we appeared to be moving in the right direction and asked what 
could be attributed to the decrease.  Lt. Zanelotti noted the decrease was due to a combination of 
increased public awareness through the newspaper and Chamber of Commerce and better law 
enforcement efforts.  He also cited arrests made in the last 12 months that have put numerous 
career criminals in prison. 

 



Public Safety Committee  
May 7, 2012 
Page 2 of 3 

Ms. Likins inquired whether crimes against property in the North and South Forest Beach areas 
had decreased.  While noting this was a large area comprised of both residential and business, Lt. 
Zanelotti pointed out only 7 larcenies in the South Forest Beach Drive area.  He saw no trend 
towards this being the highest crime area on the Island.  He agreed with Ms. Likins that public 
beach parking provides easy targets of unlocked tourist cars, which could contribute to the 
numbers. 

Although only March from the first quarter might be considered part of the Spring Break season, 
Ms. Likins asked if Lt. Zanelotti might have updated figures showing whether the efforts in 
association with the colleges to control the activities in the Forest Beach area had been 
successful.  Lt. Zanelotti pointed out the increased tickets written in March that greatly exceeded 
those issued in January and February.  This appeared to be a result of the traffic team’s presence 
to target the North and South Forest Beach area during Spring Break for violations such as 
drinking in public and on the beach.  Ms. Likins congratulated Lt. Zanelotti on the efforts of the 
Sheriff’s Department and noted that in contrast to the phone calls and e-mails received last year 
from residents of that area, she had not received any complaints during this Spring Break season. 

Chairman Harkins asked if Hilton Head Plantation’s figures were more than normal for this 
period, and if that might be related to only one or two juveniles.  Lt. Zanelotti responded that he 
would need to review the figures in more detail and either he or Capt. McSwain would report 
back. 

Mr. Edwards noted his pleasure in seeing the reduction in crime statistics and the fact that public 
awareness and vigilance was a contributing factor. 

Chairman Harkins encouraged the press to continue to assist by pointing out such basic common 
sense awareness as locking vehicles.  Lt. Zanelotti noted the great working relationship the 
Sheriff’s Office has with the press, and the community policing program that gives the public the 
opportunity to see the workings of the Sheriff’s Office. 

Brian Hulbert, Staff Attorney, reported that Code Enforcement patrols had been increased in the 
North and Forest Beach areas during Spring Break, and that no parking issues or noise 
complaints had been received.  Lt. Zanelotti also pointed out that law enforcement efforts had 
been concentrated on the beach first, where the activity starts out, and then they moved on to the 
residential areas later in the evening where the activity funnels back to. 

Eleanor O’Key, a resident of North Forest Beach, asked for clarification of whether New Orleans 
Road was considered a part of North Forest Beach.  Further, she asked if the population numbers 
of the areas could be noted on future reports, both residential and commercial, with a percentage 
of crimes to population reported to assist the public perception of lower and higher crime areas. 

Chairman Harkins advised the Committee that Julie Bell, a school board member, has 
undertaken a leadership role in trying to create community awareness about teenage access, use, 
and abuse of alcohol in our community.  He asked the Committee members if they would like to 
invite Ms. Bell to the next meeting to share what she is doing and how to garner interest and 
support from others in the community.  Ms. Likins and Mr. Edwards agreed it would afford the 
Committee an opportunity to hear about her efforts and what can be accomplished, and 
Chairman Harkins asked that an invitation be extended to her and this item added to the agenda 
for approval for the next meeting. 

 



Public Safety Committee  
May 7, 2012 
Page 3 of 3 

Adjournment 
At 10:18 a.m. Mr. Edwards moved to adjourn the meeting and Ms. Likins seconded.  The motion 
was approved by a vote of 3-0.   

                                 Respectfully submitted: 
 

                              ______________________________ 
                             Lynn W. Buchman 

Administrative Assistant 
Approved: 6/4/2012 
   
__________________________/______  
Bill Harkins, Chairman  


